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RFP Updates 

There are a number of clarifying edits to the RFP which have been posted on the Department’s public 
web site.  Please refer to these edits prior to submitting your bid. 

• Page 3-4, clarified language of the purpose of the RFP. 
• Page 10 added Section 2.1.3 Conflict of Interest. 
• Page 12 Section 3.2.1 deleted “less travel expenses” 
• Page 14 Section 4.1.3.b corrected formula. 
• Page 16 Section 9.1 clarified travel requirements for NYISO meetings. 
• Attachment 4 modified the Conflict of Interest requirements. 

 

 

Questions & Answers 

The responses to questions included herein are the official responses by the State to questions 
submitted by potential applicants and are hereby incorporated into RFP # 14-UIU-2 issued on 

May 14, 2014 and revised on August 13, 2014.  In the event of any conflict between the RFP and 
these responses, the requirements or information contained in these responses will prevail. 

 
Bid Proposals: 
 
Q1: If a bidder chooses to submit bid proposals for more than one subject area, how should the bidder 
deal with redundancy of information across bid packages? 
A1:  Each bid package must be complete; if a bidder submits a proposal for more than one of the 
requested subject areas listed under Section 2.1.1 on page 8 of the RFP, then each bid must be 
submitted separately based on the subject area bid upon.  Each submitted proposal will be evaluated 
independently of other proposals submitted by the same bidder.  In the event that these directions are 
not followed, the bid may be disqualified from consideration. 
 



Q2: If a bidder has business relationships with other market participants, will the bidder be excluded? 
A2:  No, the UIU will review each bidder for potential conflicts and if appropriate will develop processes 
and procedures during the contract phase to prevent and eliminate any potential conflicts.  The 
consultant’s priority is the end-use consumer sector; if a potential conflict of interest should arise in the 
future, the consultant must notify the UIU immediately and provide evidence of internal controls that 
will prevent conflicts of interest.  At the time of bidding, bidders should not have business relationships 
that are adverse to consumer interests. 
 
Q3: What room at 99 Washington Ave, Albany, NY should bidders deliver bid packages to? 
A3:  Suite 1110. 
 
Q4:  Will questions get shared?  
A4:  Yes, questions from the bidder’s conference and those submitted in writing will be posted on the 
website on August 12th as listed in the RFP.   
 
Q5:  There is a typo on page 14, will the UIU fix this? 
A5: The RFP has been updated and reposted with a revision to this page.   
 
Q6: Can contract hours be increased? 
A6:  Yes, the purpose of listing hours in the RFP was to establish a basis of comparison for the cost 
proposal. Contracts resulting from this opportunity will be reimbursed based on actual contract hours 
worked.  It is anticipated that the number of hours charged may change based on need and changed 
priorities. 
 
Q7: Please provide clarification on the issues of consultant location and attendance for NYISO 
meetings. 
A7: Consultants need not be based in Albany proper, but should be within commuting distance of the 
NYISO, or be willing to travel to NYISO meetings on their own time and expense.   Consultants should be 
in physical attendance at NYISO meetings that are scheduled to be for two or more hours.  

 
Q8: If more than one consultant is selected, will more than one consultant be permitted to attend the 
NYISO meetings? 
A8:  In the event that more than one consultant from different focus areas needs to attend NYISO 
meetings to adequately represent the different subject areas requested in the RFP, multiple consultants 
would be required to attend.  The UIU anticipates that initially there will be more attendance at these 
meetings, but the number of consultants attending and the number of meetings that need to be 
attended may be reduced, which will be coordinated through the UIU. 

 



Q9:  Are consultants required to be present at DOS offices? 
A9:  If the consultant is based in Albany, he/she need not be present at the DOS office on a daily basis.  
Promoting seamless communication should be a priority for the consultant(s) and may require frequent 
communication and face-to-face meetings initially.  If necessary, office space at DOS may be provided to 
achieve this goal. 
 
 
Consultant Duties 

Q10:  How will consultants report on issues?  
A10:  The UIU has not determined the reporting process.  It is anticipated that communication will occur 
through discussion, email, and written reports.    

 
Q11:  How and when are consultants expected to bring issues and information to the attention of the 
UIU?  
A11:  The nature and scope of information sharing will be refined during the course of the contract.  

 
Q12:  Does UIU anticipate that consultants will monitor Reliability Council issues? 
A12:  The consultant is not expected to regularly attend the New York State Reliability Council (“NYSRC”) 
meetings, but may have to do so on occasion should a consumer issue in the NYISO process also involve 
the NYSRC.     

 
Q13:  How are consultants expected to advocate on issues such as the Bulk Electric System (“BES”) 
definition before the NYISO? 
A13:  In this instance, the consultant would be expected to understand the roles and responsibilities of 
the NYISO and transmission owners and assess whether the proposed implementation approach is 
appropriate to meet the new requirement.   

 
Q14:  To the extent that the implementation of the BES definition has significant consequence for 
consumers, should consultant(s) understand cost consequences? 
A14:  Yes, to extent that the new BES implementation is being incorporated into long-term planning, 
consultant(s) should know the financial impacts to consumers. 
 
Q15:  Will consultants be expected to advocate for other groups like LIPA that may represent 
consumer interests?  
A15:  The UIU expects consultant(s) to develop robust working relationships with all consumer interests 
and, on case by case basis, the UIU will determine its position on issues of interest to other market 
participants.  
 
Q16:  Will UIU be directing priorities? 
A16:  Yes.  

 



Q17:  How will labor be assigned?  
A17:  Labor distribution or assignment will be determined based on priorities.  Each contractor will have 
one staff member who will serve as the point-of-contact to communicate assignments, and that person 
will work with her or his firm to assign work among team members.   
 
Q18:  Are consultants expected to be physically present for meetings that are scheduled to be less 
than two hours long?  
A18:  No, in those cases, phone attendance may be acceptable.  In person attendance will be based on 
priorities and may be required regardless of the length of the meeting. 

 

Other 

Q19:  Why can’t consultants appear before New York State Public Service Commission (PSC) 
proceedings? 
A19:  The terms of the Constellation Settlement Fund do not permit consultant(s) to appear in front of 
formal PSC proceedings directly.  The purpose of the fund is to promote representation for wholesale 
market issues, but information provided by the consultant can be used by the UIU in their appearances.  
The consultant may be asked to brief the PSC and DPS staff on issues unrelated to proceedings. 

 



Attachment 4 
Conflict of Interest Statement 

RFP #14-UIU-2 
 
The New York State Department of State may not engage an individual or firm that has a conflict of interest, and may not engage 
an individual or firm that has the appearance of a conflict of interest.  
 
A conflict of interest will be deemed to exist:  
 

(a) If the consultant/consulting firm, or any of its principals, affiliates, or subcontractors, has an existing contract(s) or 
agreement(s) with any entity whose interests are considered adverse to the interests of electricity consumers as demonstrated 
though the operation of the NYISO governance process (most commonly generator entities and their affiliates); or  

 
(b) If the consultant/consulting firm, or any of its principals, affiliates, or subcontractors, has performed any work for any 
entity whose interests are considered adverse to the interests of electricity consumers as demonstrated though the operation 
of the NYISO governance process (most commonly generator entities and their affiliates) within two years preceding the 
date of the proposal.  

 
Please refer to the listing of the most current NYISO Market Participants at 
http://www.nyiso.com/public/webdocs/markets_operations/committees/general_information/2014_Committee_Membership_Roster.pdf. 
Please list below the names of all Market Participants with whom you have an existing contract(s) or agreement(s) or for whom 
you have performed any work within two years preceding the date of the proposal. Please summarize the nature of the work, such 
as the period of time work was performed, subject matter, and continuous or intermittent.  
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
Bidder’s Organizational Name:  ____________________________________  
 
 
Authorized Signature:   ____________________________________  
 
 
Print Name:__________________________  
 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
Date:  ______________________________ 
 
 


